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ARBORICULTURALIST’S REPORT 

 
 
Terms of Reference 
 
1.1 This report was requested by Colin Smart of Kyle Smart Associates, The Barn,  

Butchers Wick, Sewell, Dunstable, Bedfordshire LU6 1RP. 
 
1.2 The instruction to carry out an inspection of trees at a site at St Thomas More Church, 

Swiss Cottage was received by email. 
 
1.3 My report is to cover the species, age, dimensions, health, recommendations for any 

remedial work and suitability for retention in relation to any development that may take 
place and to include root protection areas for each tree. 

  
 
Limitations 
 
2.1 The content of this report is valid for a period of three years from the date shown 
 above. 
 
2.2 The report is for the sole use of the client and its reproduction or use by anyone else is 

forbidden unless written consent is given by the author. 
 
2.3 This is an arboricultural report and as such, no reliance should be placed on comments 

relating to buildings or soil data. 
 
2.4 This is not a full arboricultural survey.  This can be supplied but will be subject to a further 

fee.  Any safety implications identified during the inspection are of course noted within this 
report. 

 
2.5 My observations and comments are based upon experience with previous cases. 

I have no formal engineering qualifications. 
 
2.6 The inspection was undertaken from ground level. 
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The Site 
 
3.1 The site is St Thomas More Church, Swiss Cottage. 
 
3.2 I carried out the survey on 19th August 2014 and collected data regarding trees and 

vegetation includes the species, age class, dimensions, condition and category for 
retention.  Height data was gathered using a laser clinometer.  DBH (diameter at breast 
height) was measured using a metric girthing tape.  Age and condition was estimated by 
examining the trees. 

 
Discussion 
 
4.1 The integration of trees within a development relies heavily on careful planning when 

locating properties and retaining trees nearby.  Provided these points are considered, a 
harmonious relationship between people, their houses and gardens and existing trees is 
possible. 

 
4.2 The eight trees have been numbered and categorised according to Table 1 of BS5837 : 

2012 Trees in relation to construction - Recommendations: 
 

Category No of Trees Definition 

A None 
Those of a high quality with an estimated remaining life 
expectancy of at least 40yrs 

B None 
Those of a moderate quality with an estimated remaining life 
expectancy of at least 20yrs 

C Five 
Those of a low quality with an estimated remaining life 
expectancy of at least 10yrs, or young trees with a stem 
diameter below 150mm. 

U Three 
Those in such a condition that they cannot realistically be 
retained as living trees in the context of the current land use 
for longer than 10 yrs. 

 
4.3 Any development proposal should consider that trees identified as retention categories A, 

B or C are generally those that should be retained.  However, category C trees will usually 
not be retained where they would impose significant constraint on development. 

 
4.4 Each tree to be retained within a development site warrants protection.  The British 

Standard BS5837 : 2012 Guide for Trees in Relation to Construction gives clear guidance as 
to the Root Protection Area (RPA) using Table 2 of the document.  The attached tree 
schedule provides the RPA radius for each tree as well as the area in m².   

 
 



 

 

4.5 There are however above ground constraints that may limit development close to trees.  
This includes the crown spread of the tree and, in some cases, it may be necessary to 
increase the extent of tree protection barriers to contain and thereby protect the spread of 
the crown.  This consideration should also allow for future growth.  Additional 
considerations are the obstruction of sunlight or daylight to the development.   

 
4.6 The following appendices are attached to this report: 
 

A Retention Categories 
B Root Protection Areas  
C How tree roots can be damaged during construction 
D How to avoid damage to trees during construction 

 
4.7 BS5837 calls for Root Protection Areas to be shown on the plan accompanying the planning 

application.  I have included the required data in the attached tree schedule so that you 
can add the Root Protection Areas electronically. 

 
4.8 For groups of trees, the data is an average for the trees within the group.  However, when 

plotting the information onto your plan, you should be aware that Root Protection Areas 
will overlap considerably due to the proximity of the trees to each other within the group. 

 
4.9 Section 5.3.1 of BS 5837 also calls for the inclusion of shading caused by retained trees 

where they would cause unreasonable obstruction of sunlight or daylight to a 
development.  This is represented by a segment with a radius from the centre of the stem 
equal to the height of the tree, drawn from north west to east, indicating the shadow 
pattern throughout the main part of the day. 

 
 
Conclusion 
 
5.1 All retained trees should be protected with protective fencing in line with BS 5837 : 2012 

Trees in relation to construction : Recommendations, at the distance specified for the Root 
Protection Areas in the attached schedule. 

 
5.2 Prior to commencing any arboricultural work to the trees, it is essential to liaise with the 

Local Planning Authority as they may be protected by a Tree Preservation Order or within a 
Conservation Area. 

 



 

 

5.3 Any arboricultural work should be carried out by a competent arborist in line with 
 BS3998 British Standards for Tree Work.  Should you require details of suitably qualified 
contractors, the Arboricultural Association maintains a list which is available by calling 
01242 522152 or via their website (www.trees.org.uk). 

 
Should you have any questions or require any clarification, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Bruce Hatton 
Dip. Arb. (RFS).  F. Arbor. A.  MICFor. 
 


